

Secretary of State
NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULEMAKING HEARING*
A Statement of Need and Fiscal Impact accompanies this form

FILED
4-14-17 4:20 PM
ARCHIVES DIVISION
SECRETARY OF STATE

Oregon Health Authority, Oregon Educators Benefit Board

111

Agency and Division

Administrative Rules Chapter Number

April Kelly

(503) 378-6588

Rules Coordinator

Telephone

Oregon Health Authority, Oregon Educators Benefit Board, 500 Summer Street NE, E-88, Salem, OR 97301

Address

RULE CAPTION

Amendments clarify OEGB policy and processes that are currently in place and clean up language

Not more than 15 words that reasonably identifies the subject matter of the agency's intended action.

Hearing Date	Time	Location	Hearings Officer
5-23-17	10:30 a.m.	500 Summer St. NE, Rm 137B, Salem, OR 97304	OEGB Staff

RULEMAKING ACTION

Secure approval of rule numbers with the Administrative Rules Unit prior to filing.

ADOPT:

111-080-0060

AMEND:

111-080-0001, 111-080-0005, 111-080-0030, 111-080-0040, 111-080-0055

REPEAL:

RENUMBER: Secure approval of new rule numbers with the Administrative Rules Unit prior to filing.

AMEND AND RENUMBER: Secure approval of new rule numbers with the Administrative Rules Unit prior to filing.

Statutory Authority:

ORS 243.860 to 243.886

Other Authority:

Statutes Implemented:

ORS 243.864(1)(a)

RULE SUMMARY

Cleaning up language used in Division 80 so that the language is consistent throughout all OEGB administrative rules. Additionally, amendments to this rule are to clarify OEGB policy and processes that are currently in place.

The Agency requests public comment on whether other options should be considered for achieving the rule's substantive goals while reducing negative economic impact of the rule on business.

05-31-2017 5:00 p.m.	April Kelly	april.kelly@oregon.gov
Last Day (m/d/yyyy) and Time for public comment	Rules Coordinator Name	Email Address

*The Oregon Bulletin is published on the 1st of each month and updates the rule text found in the Oregon Administrative Rules Compilation.

Secretary of State
STATEMENT OF NEED AND FISCAL IMPACT
A Notice of Proposed Rulemaking Hearing accompanies this form.

FILED
4-14-17 4:20 PM
ARCHIVES DIVISION
SECRETARY OF STATE

Oregon Health Authority, Oregon Educators Benefit Board

111

Agency and Division

Administrative Rules Chapter Number

Amendments clarify OEGB policy and processes that are currently in place and clean up language

Rule Caption (Not more than 15 words that reasonably identifies the subject matter of the agency's intended action.)

In the Matter of:

111-080-0001, 111-080-0005, 111-080-0030, 111-080-0040, 111-080-0055, 111-080-0060

Statutory Authority:

ORS 243.860 to 243.886

Other Authority:

Statutes Implemented:

ORS 243.864(1)(a)

Need for the Rule(s):

After an annual review, it was determined that there were some small changes needed to this rule. We are cleaning up language used in Division 80 so that the language is consistent throughout all OEGB administrative rules. In addition, amendments to this rule are to clarify OEGB policy and processes that are currently in place.

Documents Relied Upon, and where they are available:

ORS 243.860 to 243.886, 2007 Oregon laws available online or by request of the OEGB staff.

OEGB Board Public Meeting minutes from March 7, 2017 are available online at
<http://www.oregon.gov/oha/OEGB/Pages/OEGB-Board-Meetings.aspx>

Fiscal and Economic Impact:

These proposed administrative rules are not predicted to have a fiscal or economic impact.

Statement of Cost of Compliance:

1. Impact on state agencies, units of local government and the public (ORS 183.335(2)(b)(E)):

No fiscal impact was identified.

2. Cost of compliance effect on small business (ORS 183.336):

a. Estimate the number of small business and types of businesses and industries with small businesses subject to the rule:

Not applicable. There are no OEGB entities that can be considered a small business in Oregon.

b. Projected reporting, recordkeeping and other administrative activities required for compliance, including costs of professional services:

Not applicable. There are no OEGB entities that can be considered a small business in Oregon.

c. Equipment, supplies, labor and increased administration required for compliance:

Not applicable. There are no OEGB entities that can be considered a small business in Oregon.

How were small businesses involved in the development of this rule?

Since small businesses are not impacted by the proposed rule changes, none were invited to participate in the development of this proposed rule.

Administrative Rule Advisory Committee consulted?: Yes

If not, why?:

05-31-2017 5:00 p.m.

April Kelly

april.kelly@oregon.gov

Last Day (m/d/yyyy) and Time
for public comment

Printed Name

Email Address

DIVISION 80

OPERATIONS

111-080-0001

Payment Methods and Dates

(1) For the purpose of this rule:

(a) "ACH credit" means a payment initiated by an Entity ~~a Participating District~~ that is cleared through the Automated Clearing House (ACH) network for deposit to the OEGB account;

(b) "ACH debit" means a payment initiated by OEGB and cleared through the ACH network to debit a ~~Participating District's~~ an Entity's account and credit the OEGB account;

~~(c) "District Payment" means the monthly district payment to OEGB that includes the contributions of both Participating District and members required to pay the monthly premiums for selected OEGB benefit plans;~~

~~(d) "District Payment Invoice" means a monthly itemized statement provided by OEGB that includes the contributions of both Participating District and members required to pay the monthly premiums for selected OEGB benefit plans;~~

~~(e)~~ "Due date" means the seventh business day into the current month of coverage;

~~(f)~~ "Electronic funds transfer" refers to a payment through ACH credit or ACH debit;

(e) "Entity Payment" means the monthly entity payment to OEGB that includes the contributions of both the Entity and members required to pay the monthly premiums for selected OEGB benefit plans;

(f) "Entity Payment Invoice" means a monthly itemized statement provided by OEGB that includes the contributions of both the entity and members required to pay the monthly premiums for selected OEGB benefit plans;

~~(g) "Participating District" means a Subject District, Provisional Non-subject District and Non-subject District participating in OEGB.~~

(2) ~~Participating Districts~~ **Entities** will receive a final ~~District~~ **Entity** Payment Invoice from OEGB on the first of the month that details the payments due for that month.

(3) If the final ~~District~~ **Entity** Payment Invoice is received on a weekend or legal holiday the receipt date is recognized as the next business day.

(4) ~~Participating Districts~~ **Entities** are required to submit payment to OEGB through electronic funds transfer no later than the due date.

(5) OEGB reserves the right to issue surcharges or other appropriate measures to ~~Participating Districts~~ **Entities** that submit monthly payments after the due date.

(6) ~~Participating Districts~~ **Entities** will select an electronic funds transfer method by:

(a) Submitting an electronic funds transfer authorization form to OEGB by August 15th for payments starting October 1st of the plan year;

(b) Submitting a new electronic funds transfer authorization form to OEGB by August 15th to change the type of payment or update their account information starting October 1st of the plan year.

111-080-0005

Overpayments and Underpayments

(1) For the purpose of this rule:

(a) "Overpayment" means the amount of a ~~Participating District's~~ **Entity's** monthly payment to OEGB that exceeded the amount due.

(b) "Underpayment" means a payment submitted by a ~~Participating District~~ **an Entity** that is less than the invoiced amount.

(2) ~~Participating Districts~~ **Entities** seeking a refund of overpayments must:

(a) Notify OEGB within 90 calendar days from the date overpayment occurred;

(b) OEGB will resolve member overpayments by requesting a refund from the carrier in accordance with the law. The carrier shall refund the premium to OEGB back to the date of the termination or the date allowed by law for recoupment of paid claims.

(c) OEGB will generally reimburse ~~Participating District~~ **Entity** overpayments through adjustments to future monthly payments.

(3) The ~~Participating District~~ **Entity** shall submit any underpayment to OEGB as soon as it is discovered.

(4) OEGB reserves the right to issue surcharges or use other appropriate means for ~~Participating District's~~ **Entities** that submit underpayments.

111-080-0030

Appeals and Administrative Reviews

(1) Eligibility, enrollment issues or rescissions. OEGB has an Appeal process consisting of three levels that a member can use if they disagree with an eligibility determination or enrollment record. If the appeal is a result of a rescission, or a determination that the benefit is not a covered benefit, coverage will continue pending the outcome of the appeal. These three levels are:

(A) Appeal. An Appeal is the first level and must be received by OEGB in writing. **OEGB staff will respond to all appeals within 30 days of receipt.** OEGB staff gathers all information and sets up the Appeal file. OEGB Staff reviews the Appeal and makes a decision. The member is then notified in writing of the OEGB staff's decision. If the decision is an adverse benefit determination, the notice will include the specific reason(s) for the decision, a reference to the specific plan provision or OAR on which the determination was based a description of any additional information required and a description of the OEGB appeals process.

(B) Request for Reconsideration. A Request for Reconsideration is the second level and can be used if the member is not satisfied with the outcome on their Appeal. The request by the member must be received in writing within 31 days of receiving the Appeal decision notification. OEGB staff requests any additional information needed and includes in the Appeal file. The OEGB Management Team reviews all the information contained in the file (from the Appeal and the Request for Reconsideration) and makes a decision. The member is then notified in writing of the OEGB Management Team's decision. If the decision is an adverse benefit determination, the notice will include the specific reason(s) for the decision, a reference to the specific plan provision or OAR on which the determination was based, a description of any additional information required and a description of the OEGB appeals process.

(C) Administrative Review Request. An Administrative Review Request is the third level and can be used if the member is not satisfied with the outcome on their Request for Reconsideration. The request by the member must be in writing OEGB staff requests any additional information and adds it to the Appeal file. OEGB staff will schedule an Administrative Review Committee meeting. OEGB staff will notify the member and all applicable parties of the date, time and location. At the meeting, the Administrative Review Request will be presented to the Administrative Review Committee members and after considering all documentation and possible public comment, a decision is made. The Administrative Review Committee has the authority to grant exceptions to OEGB's Administrative Rules when there are extenuating circumstances which can be supported by documentation and verified by OEGB staff. All such documentation will be included in the member's Appeal file. The member will be notified in writing of the Administrative Review Committee's decision. If the decision is an adverse benefit determination, the notice will include the specific reason(s) for the decision, a reference to the specific plan provision or OAR on which the determination was based a description of any additional information required and a description of the OEGB appeals process.

(2) Benefit and claim issues. Following the Insurance Carrier's appeals process, a member can request an administrative review by OEGB. An Administrative Review Request can be made to OEGB if the member is not satisfied with the outcome after completing the carrier's appeal process. OEGB staff gathers all information and sets up the file. The OEGB Contracts Officer will complete an initial review of the file to ensure it is limited to a determination of whether or not a service or benefit was intended to be covered under the current contract. The initial review will assess whether there is documentation contained within the contract or member handbook relating to the benefit that was denied. If the Administrative Review request does not meet the specified criteria the Contracts Officer will refer it to the OEGB Management Team and the member will be notified in writing of the OEGB Management Team's decision. If the request does meet the specified criteria, OEGB staff will schedule an Administrative Review Committee meeting. OEGB staff will notify the member and all applicable parties of the date, time and location. At the meeting, the Administrative Review Request will be presented to the Administrative Review Committee. They will consider all documentation and public comment and make a decision in accordance with the information presented. The member will be notified in writing of the Administrative Review Committee's decision. If the decision is an adverse benefit determination, the notice will include the specific reason(s) for the decision, a reference to the specific plan provision or OAR on which the determination was based a description of any additional information required and a description of the OEGB appeals process.

111-080-0040

Eligibility and Policy Term Violations — Definitions

For the purposes of OAR 111-080-0045 and 111-080-0050, the following definitions will apply:

(1) "Eligibility or Enrollment Violations" means and includes a violation of ~~OEGB's the Oregon Educators Benefit Board's~~ eligibility or enrollment rules or policies including fraud or material misrepresentation. Misstatements, misrepresentations, omissions or concealments on the part of the OEGB member are not fraudulent unless they are made with intent to knowingly defraud. OEGB has primary responsibility in investigating such violations. If an Eligibility Violation is considered a violation of the insurance carrier's

policy, then the violation may also be considered a Policy Term Violation, and OAR 111-080-0050 would also apply.

(A) "Intentional Violation" is a violation that has occurred in which OEGB has electronic or written documentation that the eligible employee took action resulting in a non-eligible member being enrolled in OEGB benefits.

(B) "Unintentional Violation" is a violation that has occurred in which the eligible employee was not aware that such violation had occurred and there is no evidence of the eligible employee completing a paper form or logging in and enrolling an ineligible member in OEGB benefits.

(2) "Policy Term Violations" means and includes a violation of the insurance carrier's policy terms. The insurance carrier has primary responsibility in investigating such violations.

111-080-0055

Eligibility Verifications and Reviews

(1) OEGB shall plan and conduct eligibility verifications and reviews to monitor compliance with OEGB administrative rules. Reviews shall include, but are not be limited to the following:

(a) Dependent eligibility;

(b) Employee eligibility;

(c) Election change limitations; and

(c) Plan enrollment limitations.

(2)(a) Employee eligibility, election change and plan enrollment reviews may occur on a random basis throughout the year, or if anomalies in data warrant a formal review.

(b) The Eligible Employee and ~~educational~~ Entity are responsible to submit documentation upon request.

(3) Dependent eligibility verifications shall be completed at least once every five ~~three~~ years per ~~participating educational~~ Entity.

~~(a) OEGB shall develop a review plan that will include an onsite verification of dependent eligibility documentation for benefit-eligible employees of each participating educational entity once every three years.~~

~~(ab)~~ Educational Entities may have a formal dependent eligibility verification and review completed by a third party vendor on or after October 1, 2013. The use of a third party vendor for a dependent eligibility verification and review may meet the once every five ~~three~~ years requirement provided the vendor meets the standards and criteria set in the OEGB verification and review plan and agrees to report all findings to OEGB via a secure electronic file. All requests to substitute a third party vendor for this purpose must be pre-approved by OEGB.

~~(be)~~ The member eligible employee, eligible early retiree or COBRA participant is responsible to submit documentation upon request. In the event the member ~~does not provide the~~ required documentation is not provided to sufficiently prove the dependent meets eligibility requirements, or the documentation provided is insufficient, the dependent's coverage will be terminated. Retroactive

terminations may occur if the documentation provided shows the dependent was not eligible for coverage and the member misrepresented the dependent as being an eligible dependent as defined by OAR 111-080-0045.

(4) If an eligible employee does not complete the dependent eligibility review and moves to a different entity under OEGB, their terminated dependent records will be locked in the MyOEGB benefit management system. The active eligible employee must submit documentation to OEGB to be verified before the dependent records are unlocked.

111-080-0055

Dependent Eligibility Verifications and Review Appeals

(1) Following the termination of dependents due to a dependent eligibility verification review, eligible employees, eligible early retirees, or COBRA participants may file an appeal and submit requested documentation within 60 days from the date coverage ended. If approved, coverage will be reinstated retroactively with no lapse in coverage.

(2) For eligible employees, if the appeal and submitted requested documentation is received by OEGB after 60 days from the date the coverage ended, and dependents are verified, OEGB will unlock the dependent records in the MyOEGB benefit management system. Coverage can be added back following and consistent with a Qualified Status Change (QSC) during the current plan year, or during the next open enrollment period. Adding a dependent to dental or vision coverage at open enrollment will result in the 12 month waiting period being applied where only preventive and routine services will be covered for the first 12 months of coverage.

(3) For eligible early retirees, if the appeal and submitted documentation is received by OEGB after 60 days from the date the coverage ended, and dependents are verified, OEGB will unlock the dependent records in the MyOEGB benefit management system. Coverage can be added back following and consistent with a Qualified Status Change (QSC) during the current plan year, or during the next open enrollment to the plans that they were previously enrolled in.